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.. UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ' - AMON

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK ' .
S e

STATE OF NEW YORK and ALEXANDER B.
GRANNIS, as Commissioner of the New York State E 07 2 9 0 2
Diepartment of Environmental Conservation and Trustee of »

Natural Resources,

Plaintiffs,
-against- _ COMPLAINT AND
:  DEMAND FOR
EXXONMOBIL CORPORATION and JURY TRIAL
EXXONMOBIL REFINING & SUPPLY COMPANY, : il M
Defondants s U HIGY GOUIH E T

- < LV I || F I 4
BROOKYH OFFIGE

Plaintiffs Siale of New York and Alexander B. Grannis, as Commissioner of the New
York Statc Depariment of Environmental Conservation (“DEC") and Trustee of its Natural
Resources (together the “State™), by their attorney, Andrew M. Cuomo, Attorney General of the

State of New York, allege as follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION
1. Plaintiffs bring this civil action pursuant to the citizen suit provisions of the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA’, 42 U.S.C. § 6972{a)(1)(B), the citizen suit
provisions of the Clean Water Act ("CWA™), 33 U.8.C. § 1365(a)(1), the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (“CERCLA™), 42 U.S.C.
§ 9601 ef seq., the Oil Pollution Act (“OPA™), 33 U.S.C. § 2701 of seq., the New York State
Navigation Law, § 1 er seq., the New York Siate Environmenta! Conservation Law (“ECL”},

and the New York common law of public nuisance, indemnification, and restitution.

2. On information and belief, Defendants ExxonMobil Corporation and
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ExxonMebil Refining & Supply Company (together referred to as “Exxon™), and their
predecessors spilled, feaked, released, discharged, or otherwise discarded at least seventeen
million gallons of various petroleum preduets and other non-petroleum pollutants from certain
oil refining and storage facilities in Greenpoint,. Brooklyn, New York, into the surrounding
cnvironunent, including into the air, soils, subsurface soils, groundwater, wetlands, and the
surface waters and sediments of Newtown Creck {the “Creck”). The widespread contaminalion
has formed a massive plume of undergmunci petroleum and other pollutants in the Greenpoint
area (the “Spill”) (together the Spill and the Creek are referred to as the “Site™).

3. This action secks a cleanup of the Spill, including the soils, subsurface soils and
groundwater, wetlands, the vapors in the soil and air, and of the Creek, including its sedimens,
as well as the rceovery of all past and [uture costs incurred by the State in response to the |
release and threatened release of petroleum, poltutants, solid and hazardous wastes, and
hazardous substances into the environment as part of ihe Spill and into the Creek. The State
also seeks from Lixxon all available penalties and natural resource damages arising from its
contamination at the Site,

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4, This Court has original jurisdiction over the federal stalutory claims in this
complaini, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 33 US.C. § 1365(&.1]{1), 42 U.B.C. § 6972(a)(1)(1), 33
US.C. § 2701 ef seq., 42 U.S.C. §§ 9607 and 9613, and.EE U.S.C. § 2201. The Court has
supplemental jurisdiction, under 28 U.8.C, § 1367, for the remaining claims, which are based

upon New York statutes and common law and arise out of a common nucleus of operative facts

shared with the lederal claims, The Court also has jurisdiction to enter a declaratory judgment
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under 28 U.8.C. §§ 2201 and 2202 and 4.2 U.5.C. § 9013,

3, Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 9613(b) and 28 U.S.C.

§ 1391(b} because the threatened and actual releases of pelroleum, pollutants, solid and
hazardous wastcs, and/or hazardous substances that give rise to this action occurred and/or are
occurring in this District and the Site is located in this District,

0. On February 8, 2007, the State of New York mailed to the defendants notices of
its inlent 1o sue on the violétions described in this complaiot arising under the CWA, 33 U.S.C.
§ 1365{’0}{1)1@), and under RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6972(b){2)(A), and also mailed copies of those
notices to the Administrator of the United States Environmental Proteetion Agency (“EPA™) and
to the Commrissioner of DEC, as required under the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1365(b)(1)(A), and
RCRA, 42 US.C. § 6972(b)(2)A). The notice describing the violations under RCRA is
annecxed as Exhibit 1, and the notice describing the violations under the CWA is armexed as
Lixhibit 2, |

7. Exxon’s violations of the CWA a.nd RCRA arc ongoing and will continue in the
future.

8, Neither EPA nor the State of New York has commenced and is difigently
prosccuting a prior court action relating to Exxon's contamination of the Site under the CWA,
33 U.B.C. § 251 ef seq., or under RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)1){B); Las incurred costs to
initiate & romedial investigation and feasibilily study under section 104 of CERCLA, 42 1J.8.C.
§ 9604, and is diligenily proceeding with a remedial action under section 104 of CERCLA, 42
UL8.C. § 92604, is actually engaging in a removal aption under section 104 of CERCLA, 42

U.8.C. § 9604; or has commenced an aclion or issucd an administrative order under section 106
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of CERCLA, 42 U.8.C. § 9606, or under RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6973,

2. All requirements for filing a citizen suit under the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

§ 1365(b)(1A), and under RCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 69?2[b)(2){A)—(C), have been satisfied.
THE PARTIES

10 Plaintiff, State of New York, as a body politic and a sovereign entity, brings this
action on behall of itself and as parens patrie, trustee, guardian, and répresenlative on behalf
of all residents and citizens of New York, particularly those citizens and residents who live in
the vicinity of the Site.

11.  Plaintiff Alexander B. Grannis, Commissioner of DEC, and Trustee of the State
of New York’s natural resources pursuant to CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9607()(2)(b), joins in this
action to recover damages for Injury to, or loss of, the State’s natural resources,

12, On information and belief, Defendant ExxonMohil Corporation is a publicly held
¢orporation organized under the laws of the State of New.Jerse}*. It is the suceessor of the
Moebil Qil Corﬁomtiun (“Mabil”}, through a merger in 1999, and of other companies that
operated at the Site.

13. Mobil was the owner and operator of a petroleum facility located at 300 North
Henry Street, Brooklyn, New York and an oil refinery located betweeti Oreenpoint and Norman
Avenues, Brooklyn, New York,

14.  Oninformation and belief, Defendant ExxonMobil Refining & Supply Company
is a corporation organized under the laws of the Statc of New Jersey, On information and belief,

it operates and manages refining and supply facilities on behalf of ExxonMobil Corporation,

inclnding operating and managing remediation efforts at such facilities.
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FACTS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS

153.  Since at least the early 1900's, Exxon and its predeceasdrs, including the
Standard Oi1 Company, the Standard Oil Company of New York, and Mobil il Company, have
owned and operated petrolenm refining and storage facilities — at times known as the Brooklyn
Terminal - located in the Greenpoint neighborhood of Brooklyn, New York, On information
and belief, Exxon also nw_ncd the propeny. on which the facil.ities were located,

16.  These facilitics included  large tank farm property and a refinery and storage
facility that encompassed all of the land now bounded by North Henry Street, Greenpoint
Avenue, Normaﬁ Avenue, and Apollo Street in Brooklyn, and Newlown Creek, On information
and belief, Exxon continues to own an inactive petroleum storage facility within the area.

17.  Inthe course of operations at these fa,ci_lities, Exxon spilled, leaked, released,
discharged, or r:-fherwis.e discarded over seventecn million gallons of petroleum, pollut'ants, solid
and hazardous wastes, and other hazardous substances into the enviromment, including into the
soils, subsurface soils, groundwater, wetlands, and surface waters.

18, The plume of contaminants from Exxon’s Spill has migrated, and continues to
migrale, to the Creek. As it reaches the edge of the Creek .thesc contaminants seep into the
Creek’s waters through diserete cracks, fissures, chanuels and gaps in bulkheads located along
the Creek’s shoreling including at properties known as the Peerless Iraporters and the Steel
Equities propertics, The Peerless Imporlers property is located at 26 Bridgewater Street and
Moeker Avenue in Brooklyn (Block #2666, Lots 1, 52, 125), and the Steel Equities propertly is

located at 100 and 120 Apollo Street and Bridgewater Street in Brooklyn (Block #2666, Lots

101 and 201). The bulkhead seepages have ocowred, without limitation, on the dates set forth
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in exhibit C to thr_a notice of inlent fo sue attached as Exhibit 2, and they continue to occut,

19 In February 1990, an oil épill of 50,000 gallons from an.aboveground storage
tank, No. 69, occurred al the Mobil Oi] Terminal, 300 North Henry Street, Brooklyn. DEC
entered inte an administrative Order on Conscnt with Mobil, under NY Navigation Law §8173,
175, and 176, and the Water Pollut_icrn Control Law, ECL § 17-0501, for the investigation and
remediation of only the spill from tank No. 69 and the petroloum fiee produet plume under
Exxon’s current and former petroleum refining and storage facilities (*On-Site Order’™). The
Cn-Site Order did not address the Spill’s dissolved groundwater plume, soil contamination,
vapot releases,l or contamination of the Creek and its biota.

200 In June 1990, DEC entered into a s.eparate administrative Drder. on Consent with
Mobil, under NY Navigation Law §§173, 1.?5, and 176, and the Water Pollution Control Law,
ECL § 17-0501, for the investigation and remediation of only the peiroleum free product J}Iume.
that had migrated throngh the subsurface and off the boundaries of Exxon's current and former

" petroleum refining anci storage facilittes (“Off-Sife Order’). The Off-Site Order did not address
the 8pill’s dissolved groundwater plume, soil contamination, vapor releases, or contamination of
the Creek and its biofa.

21, Exxon owns and operates two systems to recover only petroleum free product
from the subsurface in Greenpoint, Brooklyn: (1) the Ofi-Site Frec Pmduct Recovery System
(O Site Recovcry Sysiem”} located on Bridgewater Street, Greenpoint, Brnﬂk}}fn New York,
which includes an ouifall into Newtown Creek located at the end of Meeker Avenue; and (2) the

Brooklyn Tetminal Free Product Recovery System (“On-Site Recovery System™) located at 400

Kingsland Avenue, Brooklyn, New York, which also includes an outfall int¢ Newtown Creek.
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22, Asanincident of their .ﬂperatiqn, these [ree product TECOVEYy SYSIEMS recover |
comtaminated groundwater, whic_h is treated with air strippers and then discharged into
Newtown Creek through the two aforesaid outfalls, Each of these outfalls is currently reguIatéd
by the New Yotk State Pollution Discharge Elimination System {“SPDES™) perimil equivalency
prograrn, with Dvcrsigﬁt by DEC.

23, Over the hislory of the operations of these outfalls, Exxon discharged through
these ouifalls various petroleum contaminants, pulluf_ants, s0lid and hazardous wastes, and other
hazardous substances, some of which were not authorized to be discharged by the SPDES.
permit equivalency program. Such unauthorized discharges oceurred, ‘;ifithﬂut limitation, on the
dates set forth in exhibit A to the noticc of inlent to sue annexed as Exhibit 2,

24, From March 9, 2007, until on or about June 28, 2007, Exxon shul down both of
its pelroleum free product recovery systems despite the objection to the shutdown made by the
State and the State’s demand Ii.hat Exxon continue recovery of released pctmlw_m and treatment

of contaminated groundwater. This shutdown reduced Exxon’s recovery of petroieum fice
product to de minimis amounts and thus effectively suspended Exxon’s on-site and off-site
recovery efforts, in violalion of Exxon's obligations under the On-Site and Off-Site Crders and
under law. The Exxon On-Site and Off-site Orders requite the recovery of petroleum free
product from the subsurface in Greenpoint, Brooklyn.

235, On information and belief, LExxon’s shutdown exacerbated the Spill’s
contamination of the Site, including worsening groundwater seepage into the Creek and causing

visible petroteum sheens on the Creek’s surface waters.

26, Despite the On-Site and Off-8ite Orders, and Exxon®s obligations under the law,
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miilions of gallons of petroleumn, p.ullutants, golid Ei'n;:l hazardous wastes, and hazardous
substances remain under the .subsurl‘ace at least fifcj,f years after the Spill, thereby presenting
ongeing imminent and substant.ial endangerments to the people who live near the Site and to the
environment at and surrounding the Site.

27.  The presence of the Spill in the subsurface of the affected area of Grécnpoiﬁt
presents the risk of toxic vapors from the Spill migrating through the subsurfave and cntering
the homes and commercial establishments in the ar:a.

28.  Exxon has refused and failed to investigate and remediate the environmental
conditions created by its Spill, including refusing and failing to address the contaminated soils,
the contaminated subsurface soils, the contaminated groundwater and dissolved groundwater
plume, the contaminaled wetlands, and the contaminated Creek, which refusal and faihire hag
created risks to the public health and the environment at the Site.

29, The Stale has incurred cq:;sts and expanscﬁ in responding to Exxon’s releases of
petroleum and other pollutants and contaminants, including without limitation costs of oversight

and invesligation.

- FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
RESOURCE CONSERVATION AND RECOVERY ACT

30, Petroleum is a “solid waste” and a “hazardous waste™ under sections 1004(27)
and 1004{3), reﬁpectiv&ly, of RCRA, 42 U.S.C, § 6503(27) and § 6903(3). Qther pollutants
discharged by Exxﬁ-n from its facilities and recovery systems are also solid and hazardous

wastes under RCRA.

31.  The release, leaks, spills and other discharges from Exxon’s current and former
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Greenpoint petrolcum refining and storage facilities over the years constitute illegal “disposal”
under section 1004(3) of RCRA, 42 11.5.C. § 6903(3).

32, Exxon is the past owner and operator of a solid waste disposal facility within the
meaning .ﬂf section Tﬂﬂﬁ(a}{l}{ﬂ} of RCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 6972(2)( 1)(B).

33.  Exxon has contributed to the past and present handling, :sturagc, and disposal of
solid and hazardous waste, as defined in section 1004 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6903,

34, Exxon’s petroleum, other pollutanis, and solid and hazardous wastes have
entered into, and continue to enter into the environment at and about the sitc, including the
s0ils, subsutface soils and groundwater, the air, and the Creck. |

35, | The presence qf the petroleum, other pollutants, and solid and hazardous wastes,
including vapors and explosive gases, in the environment at and about the Site preseits
~ imminent and substanlial endangerments to the health of persons and 10 the environment within
the meaning of section 7002(a)(1)(B} of RCRA, 42.U.8.C. § 6972(a)1%B).

36, Exxonis liable for penalties not to exceed $25,000 per day per violation payable .
to the United Stales pursuant to 42 U,8.C. §§ 6928(a) and (g), &6072(a). |

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
CLEAN WATER ACT

37, The CWA prohibits the discharge of any pollutant by any person without a
permit. 33 U.5.C. § 1311(a).
38.  Petroleum products are pollutants under section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U.8.C.

§ 1362(6). Other chemical wasies aud solid and hazardous wastes have been cischarged into the

environment by Exxon and these wastes are also pollutants under section 502(6) of the CWA,
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33 U.S.C. § 1362(5).

39, . The petroleum and m;}thcr pollutants from Exxon’s Spill have migrated to the
Creek and entered, and conlinue to enter into the Creek through discret'_f: cracks, fissures,
channels and gaps in bulkheads along the Creek that constitute “point sources” under section
S(2(14} of the CWA, 33 U.S.C, § 1362(14).

40. Newtown Creck isa navigable watcr of the United States under section 502(7) of
the CWA, 33 U.S.C, § 1362(7). |

41, Exxon’s discharge of the petrolcum and other pollutants from point sourceé in
the bulkheads is not authorized by a SPDES permit or other rcquiremeﬁt of the State’s SPDES
permit eguivalency pmgrmﬁ. These discharges, whose dates are Sp;ecfiﬁed, without Hmitation, in
exhibit C to the notice of intent to sue attached as Exhibit 2, have violated the prohibition set
forth in 33 U.8.C. § 1311{a), and such discharges to the Creek from point sourecs in the
bulkheads are continuing.

42, .Exxon’s discharges of the petroleum and other poliutants to the Creek constilute
unlawful discharges of a pollutant under section 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.8.C. § 1362(12),
and are in violation of 33 U.8.C, § 1311(a) and of effluent standards or limitations under the
CWA. |

43, Exxonis liable for penalties up to $25,000 per day per violation payable to the
United States pursuant to 33 U.8.C. §§ 1319(d) and 1365(n). |

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEE
OIL POLLUTION ACT

44, Exxon's current and former Greenpoint oil refining and storage facilities

10
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constitute an “onshoere facility” under section 1001(24) of OPA, 33 U.S.C. § 2?01(24}.

45.  Exxon is the owner or operator of an onshore facility from which there has becn
aud continucs to be a discharge of oil, within the meaning of sections LOGL(7), (23), and (26) of
OPA, 33 U.8.C, '§§ 2701(7}, (23), and (26). The discharges continue and said discharges
constitute an incidenl under section 1001(14) of QPA, 33 U.B.C, § 2701(14), which incident
occurred after August 18, 1990,

46. Newlwm Creek is a navigable water of the United Stales under sea;;,tion 1001(21)
of OPA, 33 U.B.C, §270121).

4.?‘ Accordingly, Exxon is a “responsible pariy” and is liablé to the State for the
State’s removal costs and damages, within the meaning of section 1002(a) of DPA, 33U.8.C
§ 2702(a}.

48.  Exxon’s release of oil into navigable waters and adjoining shorelines, and the
environument, has caused injury to, destruction of, and/or loss of the natﬁral resources of the
Stale under sections 1001(20) and 1002 of OPA, 33 U.8.C. §§ 2701(20) and 2702,

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
COMPREHENSIVE ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE,

COMPENSATION, AND LIABILITY ACT

49.  Exxon’s Greenpomt oil refining and storage facilities constitute a *lacility” under
section 101{9) of CERCLA, 42 11.8.C. § 9601(9),

30. Among the chemicals. that were released and that threaten to be released into the
‘environment from the facility are hazardous substances, whiéh _c»{:-ntaminated the environment,
including soils, surface waters, groundwater, and the Creek, within the nieaning of sections

101(14) and 101(22) of CERCLA, 42 U.8.,C. §§ 9601(14) and 9601(22), .

11
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51,  The rcl.case and threatencd release of hazardous substances have caused the Stale
to incur respouse costs for invesiigation, n.vcrsight, and related activitiés. 'I‘hg State will incur
further response costs as defined in section 101 of CERCLA, 42 U.8.C. § 9601, for
investigations, remediation, oversight, and enlorcement.

52, The response costs metitioned above are costs of removal or remedial ﬁction with
the meaning of sections 101(23), (24), (253, (31), and section 107(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.8.C.

§§ 9601(23), (243, (25), (31}, and § 9607(a).

53.  The State is cntitled to recover from responsible ﬁers-:ms all response costs for
actions that are net inconsistent with the National Qil and Hazardous Substanﬁes Pollution
Contingency Plan, 40 C.F.R. Part 300, under section 107(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.8.C. § 9607.

54. Pursuant to scction 107(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.8.C. § 9607(a), Yxxon is liable as
owner and/or operator at the time of disposal, as current owner and/or operator, and/or as
generator of malerials containing hazardous substances, which materials were disposed at the
Jite,

5. Pursuant (o section 107(a) of CERCLA, 42 U S.C. § 9607(a), Exxon is strictly,
jointly, a.md severally liable to the State [or past response costs incurred by the State in respc:ﬁse
to the releasc or threatened relcase at and from the Site.

536.  Pursuant to sections 107 and 113 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9607 and 9613,
Exxon is strictly, jointly, and severally liable for future response costs to be incurred by ihe
State as a result of the release or threatened release of hazardous substances at s;hd ﬁnﬁ the Site,

57. Therelease of hazardous substances into the environment has caused injury to,

destruction of and/or loss of the natural resources of the State within the meaning of sections

12
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101(16) and 107(a} of CERCLA, 42 U.8.C, §§ 9601(16) and 9607(a).
58.  Pursuant to sections 107(a) and 113 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C, §§ 9607(a) and
9613, Exxon is strictly, jointly, and severally liable for any natural resource damages.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
NEW YORK STATE NAVIGATION LAW

59.  Atall relevant times, Exxon or one of its predecessors owned the Greenpoint oil
refining and storage facilities along the Creek.

60.  Atall relevant.times, Lxxon or one of its p.redecessurs operaied the Greénpoint :
oil refining and storage facilities along the Creek

61.  Atall times relevant hereto, Exxon’s acts or omissions resulted in a discharge of
petroleum a.t the Site.

62, Atall times relevant hercto, Exxon failed to timely report said petroleum
discharge. |

63. At the times relevant hereto, Exxon failed to ake all meﬁsures necessary to ¢lean
up and remove said discharge, |

64, Pursuant to Article 12 of the NY Navigation Law, Exxon is stricily liable,
without regard to fault, for all cleanup and removal costs incurred and to be incurred by the
State, and for all direct and indirect damages, including without limitation damages to natural
resources and the costs of restoration of Newtown Creek and the soils and groundwater affected
by the Spill.

b5, By reason of Exxon’s .discharge of petroleum and its failurc to timei}r report said

discharge, and iis failure to take all measures necessary to clean up and remove said dischargc,

13
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Exxon has violated the provisions of Article 12 of the NY Navigation Law and is liablc under
NY Navigation Law § 192 to the State for mandatory penalties in the amount of not mﬁrc than
$25,000 for cach offense and, for any conlinuing violation, a like penalty for each day that the
offenses continued or are continuing,

66. Pursnant lo NY Navigation Law § 176, Exxon has an obligation to contain its
.dischargES of petroleum,

67. By shutting down each of the petroleum free product recovery systems, Exxon
breached its duty sct forth in NY Navigation Law § 176, and is liable under NY Navigation Law
§ 192 to the State for mandatory ;ﬁenaltics in the amount of not more than $25,000 for each day
from March 9, 2007 to June 28, 2007, that the On-Site Recovery System was shutdown, and is
lisble under NY Navigation Law § 192 to the Siate for mandatory penalties in the amount of not
more than $25,000 for each day from March $, 2007 to June 28, 2007, that the Off-Site
Recovery System was shutdown,

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
NEW YORK STATE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION LAW

68.  Groundwater in general and Newtown Creek are “waters of the state™ as defined
in ECL § 17-0105. The Creek is also a tidal waterway that contains designated tidal wetlands.

69.  Newtown Creek is classified by the State as a class SD» water body, which
prohibits the addition of patrolcum products in am;:}unts that cause a vi_sihle sheen,

70. Growmdwater beneath and surmounding the Siie is classified as GA, which
prohibits the addition of pollutants to such water in excess of groumdwater standards of the

Stale,

14
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71. For decades, Exxon has discharged and continues to discharge petroleum,
poliutants, salid m_u:l hazardous wastes, and hazardous substances into t.he waters of the State,
including into groundwater and Newtown Creek and its tidal wetlands.

72, The discharge of said pollutants and wastes has caused and is causing or
contributing to a condition in conlraveution of surface water and groundwater standards adopted
by DEC. These discharges accordingly are in violation of ECL § 17-0501 et seg. and the
staridards cstablished under ECL § 17-0301,

73, The discharge of said pollutants also violates BCL § 25-0101 et seq. and related
regulations, which prohibit the pollution of the Statc's tidal wetlands.

74.  The contaminants from Exxon’s Spill and its facilities Ihave migrated to the
Creek and entdrc.:d, and continue to enter, into the Creek through diserete fissures, channels,
conduits and other means in bulkheads along the Creek that constitute “point sq.:mrces" under
ECL §§ 17-0105(16), and 17-0505,

75.  These discharges through the point sources in and about the bulkheads are
unpermitted and in coniravention of ECL §§ 17-0501, 17-0505, 17-0511, 17-0701, 17-0803, and
17-0807, and 6 Ncw York Codes, Rules and Regulations § 750-1.4(a). |

76.  Exxon also discharged poliutants to the Creek from its On-Site and Off-Siie
Recovery Systems through the two outfalls, and the discharge of certain of these poliutants, as
specified in exhibit A to (he notice of intent 10 sue ann_cxed as Exhibit 2, was not authorized by
a SPDES permit or any other requircment of the State's SPt}ES permit equivalency program.

77, These discharges through the m';::- outfalls, as spe_ciﬁed in exhibit A to the noetice

of intent 1o sue annexed as Exhibit 2, were unpermitted and in contravention of ECL §§ 17-

15
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0501, 17-03505, 17-0511, 17-0701, 17-0803, and 17-0807, and 6 New York Codes, Rules and
Regnlations § 750-1.4(a).

78.  Pursuant to ECL § 71-1929, Exxon has violated Article 17, titles 1-11, the
regulations promulgated thercunder, and/or the permit issued pursuani thereto by (a) discharging
through point sources in the bulkheads without a SPDES permit or its equivalency, and (b)
discharging. pollutants iu the past through the two outfatls not authorized by a SPDES permit or
a permit cquivalency, and is subject (o a civil penalty not to exceed $37,500 per day for each
viﬂlati_un.

79, Pursvant to BCL §§ 71-1929 and 71-1931, the State is eﬁl.itled to an injunction
requiting Exxon to cease these unpermitted discharges of contaminants into the groundwater
and Creek unless and until it obtains a SPDES permit for such discharges [rom DEC,

80, As a resull of its discharges to tidal wetlands, Exxon has vielated the tidal
wetlands provision of Article 25 of the ECL, and pursuant to ECL §§ 71-2501, 71-2503, 71-
2505, and 71-2507, the State is entitled to civil penalties of not more than $25,000 for cach
violation and injunctive relief.

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
PUBLIC NUISANCE.

81.  The release of petroleum, pollutﬁnta solid and hazardous wastes, and hazardous
substances from the Site and their presence in the environment, including groundwater, at and in
the vicinity of the Site constitute a continuing public nvisance.

82.  Exxon participated in the creation of this continuing public nuisance at and in the

vicinily of the Site. Exxon has maintained this continning public nuisance at and in the vieinity
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of the Site.

B3, Thf:. State has incurred ¢osts to abate the public nuisance at this Site.

84.  Lxxon is liable to the State under the common law of public nuisance and New
York Real Property and Proceedings Law, Section 841, for all costs of abatement of this public |
nuisance, and all damages, including natural resource damages arising from it.

EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
INDEMNIFICATION

85.  Atall limes relevant hersto, Exxon had and c_antinues.tn have a duly and
obligation to the public to investigate the scope of and abate completely and permanently the
contamination described herein, and to alleviate the harm and risk of harm resufting from the
contamination.

86.  Exxon has failed to perforn its dﬁties and obligations to do so.

87.  The Slate has the duty and obligation to protect the public health and the
environment and to remediate Inactive Hazardous Waste Disposal Sites, such as this Site,
pursvant to ECL §§ 3-0301, 27-1301 ef seg., and other environmental aﬁd public health laws of
the State,

88.  DBecause of Exxon’s failure Lo perform its duties and obligations, the State has
had td investigate the scope of and abate the chemical contamination at and near the Site at the
State’s EXpENSE.

89. Intaking ihe action and incurring the expenses set forth herein, the Siaie has
performed duties and obligalions owed by Exxon.

90. Aécﬂrdingly, by reason of the State’s pavments for the costs of investigation and
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remediation of the Site, the State obtained by operation of law an implied right to
indemnificalion against Exxon in the amount of such payments.

NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
RESTITUTION

1. The aclions taken and expenses incutred by the State were necessary to ensure

the healih, safety, and well-being of the public and the environment of the State.
| 92. Lxxon has been unjustly enriched by the State’s performance of the duties and
obligations owed by Exxon.

93.  The State is cntitled to restitution from Exxon for the expenses incurred by it in
performing Exxon’s duties and obligations.

94, .Thc Stale has no adequate remedy at law,

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WI—IEREFC)EE, the State requests judgment in its favor and against Exxon upon each
claim and, further, requests that this Court cnter judgment against Exxon on each claim;

1. Declaring Exxon to be strictly, jointly, and severally liable to the State for the
remediation of the 8pill’s contamination of the Site and surrounding gréundwater, and ordering
Exxon to investigate, remediate and abate the contamination of the soils, subsurface soiis,
greundwater, air, and Creek, including ifs sediments and biota;

2. Declaring Exxon to be strict]}r;jointly, and severally, liable to the Staie for, and
awarding to the State, all costs and expenses, including interest, attorneys” lees, and other costs
of enforcement, incurred by the State in responding to the release or threat of releasc of the

petroleum, pollutants, solid and hazardous wastes, and hazardous substances at the Site, and.

18




Case 1:07-cv-02902-CBA-RML  Document 1 Filed G7/17/2007 Page 19 of 52

damages to the State’s natural resourges, and entering judgment in an amouni to be determined
by the Court;

3. Declaring Exxén to be strictly, jointly, and severally, liable to the State for all
further response costs and expenscs, including interest, attorneys’ fees, and other costs of
enforcement, to be incurred by the State in responding to the release or threat of releasc of the
petrelcum, pollutants, solid and hazardous wastes, and hazardous substances at the Site, and
damages to the State’s natural resources:

4, Decl_aring Exxon sirictly, jointly, and severally liable to the State for penalties
under the NY Navigation Law and the ECL for each violation to the maximum extent provided
by law, and applying all appropriate civil penalties under the CWA pursuant to 33 U.S.C.

§ 1365(a) and under RCRA pursuant to 42 U .S.C. § 6972(a), and éntcring Judgment against
Exxon in an amount 1o be determined by the Court;

5. Enjoining Exxon from further discharges of petroléum, pollutants, solid and
hazardous wasles, and hazardous substances into the groundwater and Creck in violation of laﬂv;
and

6. Granting the State all costs of liligation, including reasonable attorney and expert -
witness fees, pursuant to 33 U.S.C, § 1365(d) and 42 U.S.C. § 6972(e); and

7. Ordering such other and further relief, in law or in equity, as the Court deems just
and proper,

Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the State demands trial by
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jury in this action of all issues triable by Jjury in this matter.

Dated: New York, New York
July 17, 2007
ANDREW M, CUOMO
Attorney General of the State of New York
Attomey for Plaintiils

By: m ﬂ;} ﬂ;j/\/\ |

KATHERINE

GORDON 1L

Assislant Attorneys General

New York State Department of Law
Environmental Protection Bureau
120 Broadway — 26th T1.

New York, New York 10271

{212} 416-83430, 3448
Katherine.Kennedy@oag.state.ny us
Gordon.Johnson@oeag state.ny.us
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STATE OF NEW YORK
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNMEY GENERAL

ANDREW M. CuoMo
Atlorney Gongral

Via Certified United States Mail

ExxonMobil Corporation
Corporate Headquarters
5959 Las Colinas Boulevard
Irving, Texas 75039-2298

‘ExxonMobil Corporation
Corporation Service Company
Repgistered Agent in New York State
30 State Street

Albany, New York 12207

" Steve P, Trifiletti
ExxonMoebil Refining & Supply Company
Global Remediation
Inwood Terminal
464 Doughty Boulevard
Iwood, New York 11096

Chevron Corporation _
6001 Bollinger Canyon Rd.
San Ramon, California 94583

Chevron Corporation

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System, Inc.

Registered Agent in New York State
80 Statc Street :
Albany, New York 12207

Dnision oF PUBLIC ADYOCAGY
Envirenmanlal Protection Buresu

February 8, 2007

Chevron Environmental Management
Company
6001 Bollinger Canyon Rd.

- San Ramon, California 94583

Chevron Environmental Management
Company

Corporation Service Company
Registered Agent in New York State
80 State Street

Albany, New York 12207-2543

BP America Ing,
4101 Winfield Rd.
Warrenville, Tllinois 60555

BP America Ing,

CT Corporation System

Registered Agent in New York State
111 Eighth Ave.

New York, New York 10011

Phelps Dodge Corporation
One North Central Ave.
Phoenix, Arizona 85004-4416

Phelps Dodge Corporation

CT Corporation System

Registered Agent in New York State
111 Eighth Ave, '

New York, New York 1001

120 Broadway, 260 FI. New York, N.Y. 102710332 & Phong {212) 416-8448 # Fax [212) 416-6007
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Keyspan Corporation, ' Keyspan Corporation
Corporation Service Company One Metrotech Center
Registered Agent in New York State ' Brooklyn, New York 11201
B0 State Street :

Albany,; New York 12207-2543

RE: Notice of Intent to Sue BxxonMobil Corporation, BExxonblobil Refiving & Supply
: Company, Chevron Corporation, Chevron Environmental Management Cotapany,
BP America Inc., Phelps Dodge Corporation, and Keyspan Corporation for
Violations of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act in Greenpoint,

Brooklyn, New York

Dear Sirs and Madams:

The State of New York {State) hereby gives notice of its intent to sue ExxonMobil
Corporation and its affiliate, ExxonMobil Refining & Supply Company (together “BExxon’™),
Chevron Corporation and its affiliate, Chevron Environmental Management Company {together
“Chevron™}, BP America Inc. (BP), Phelps Dodge Corporation (PD), and Keyspan Corporation
(Keyspan) under 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a){1 B} for violating the federal Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (RCRA) by creating au imminent and substantial endangerment to health and the
environment in Newtown Creek (the Creek)} and portions of the adjacent shoreline. In ifs action,
the State will seek mpunctive relief under RCRA for solid or hazardous waste contaminalion of
soils and groundwaters, and the surface waters and sediments of the Creek, all of which may
pose, separately and collectively, an imminent and substantial endangerment to the health of
Greenpoint’s residents and to the Creck and its surrounding environs. The State’s ultimate goal
is the cleanup of the Creek,

I. The Contamination of Newtown Creek with RCRA Solid or Hazardous Wastes

An historic and underappreciated resource, Newtown Creek is a 3.5-milc-long waterway
that separates Queens and Brooklyn, New York and that flows into the Bast River, making it a
iributary of the invaluable New York Harbor. The Creek itself has several tributarics — Whale
Creek, Dutch Kills, Maspeth Creek, and English Kills — and appm}umatcly 17( acres of sediment
bed. :

Recent samples of the Creek’s surface waters and sediments have revealed that industrial
wastes, including petroleum, are present in the Creek. Attached as Exhibit A is a list of the
wastes, or chemicals, curreatly found in the Creek. Some of those listed — for cxample, arsenic,
lead, copper, various polychlorinated biphenyts (PCBs), various pesticides, various polynuclear
arematic hydrocarbons (PAHSs), various semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs), and various
volatile organic compounds (VQCs) — are known to be toxic or carcinogenic. Most, if not all, of
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the chemicals listed in Exhibit A are solid or hazardous wastes under RCRA when, as here, they
have been discarded.

The presence of these RCRA wastes in the Creek’s waters and sediments may pose a
threat to the health of its citizens and residents — in particular, nearby residents, subsistence
fishers and crabbers, and recreational users. The contired presence of these wastes may also
pose a threat to the Creek’s aquatic life — fish, shellfish, crustaceans, and plants — and to any
birds — watcrfowl] and wading birds, for instance — that migrate through or eat biota from the
Creek. In addition, the Creek’s contamination endangers the various other naturai resources that
exist within the Creck’s ccosystem — its surface waters, its sediments, and its tidal wetlands,
among others. Finally, the Creek’s pollution may also pose a threat to the overall water quality
of New York Harbor.

IL. The RCRA Solid or Hazardous Wastes Disposed of by Exxon, Chevron, BP, Phelps
Dodge, and Keyspan Created an Imminent and Substantial Endangcerment

Lach of the companies noticed here by the State have contributed or are contributing solid -
* or hazardous wastes to the current contamination of the Creek’s waters and sediments and
adjacent land areas, and therefore bear responsibility for creating environmental conditions that
may pose an imminent and substantial endangerment to public health and the environment, all in
violation of RCRA. '

A Exxon

since at least the early 1900's, if not earlier, lixxon and its predecessors, including the
Standard Oil Company, the Standard Oil Company of New York, and Mobil Oil Company, have
owned and operated petroleum refinery and storage facilitics — at times kenown ag the Brooklyn
Terminal - located in the Greenpoint neighborhood of Brooklyn. At one point, these facilities
included a large tank farm property (now a part of the Newtown Creek Wastewater Treatment
Plant) and a refincry and storage facility that encompassed al! of the land now bounded by North
Henry Street, Greenpoint Avenue, Norman Avenue, Apollo Strect, and Newtown Creek, Exxon
still owns an inactive petroleum storage facility within that area.

During the many decades of Exxon’s operation of its Greenpoint petroleum refinery and
storage facilities, Exxon spilled, leaked, or otherwise discarded at least seventeen million gallons
of various petroleum products and other nen-petroleumn pollutants from its Greenpoint facilities
into the surrounding enviromment, including into the soils, subsurface soils, groundwater, and the
waters and scdiments of Newtown Creek. This widespread contarnination has formed a massive
plume of underground petrolemm and other pollutants in the Greenpoint area (the Spill). Vapors
from the Spill’s pollutants continue to present ongoing health risks to the people of Greenpoint.

Exxon’s disposal of solid or hazardous wastes is ongoing as the Spill’s polluiants
continue to move into the Creek through seeps in shoreline bulkheads located at the Peerless

3
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Importers and Steel Equities properties’ and, on information and belief, through contaminated
groundwater flowing into the Creek. Exxon also continues to disposc of so0lid or hazardous
wastes through its on-site and off-site free product recovery systems, which are currently
discharging into the Creek solid or hazardous wastes not authorized by any federal or state permit
or equivalency. '

Many, if not all, of the solid or hazardous wastes disposed of, or being disposed of, by
Exxon have been detected in the recent sampling of the Creek’s surface waters and sediments,
see the attached Exhibit A, and have also been detected in recent groundwater sampling in the
Greenpoint area, see the attached Exhibit B, Creek sediment samples also found petroteum - as
much as 10% of the dry weight of the sample.

B. Chevron

Chevron, and ifs predecessors, including Paragon Oil Company and Texaco Ine., owned
and operated a petroleum storage facility that was located in Greenpoint, Brooklyn at the corner
of Bridgewater Street and Meeker Avenue and which bordered the Creek, During the course of
its ownership and operation of this facility, Chevron and its predecessors spilted, released, and
otherwise disposed of petroleum and other contatinants into the cnvironment in the area of its
facility, which contaminants entered the subsurface, soils, and groundwater, as well as'the
surface waters and sediments of the Creek and its fributaries. For years, and continuing to the
present, contanyinants from these releascs have discharged iuto the adjacent Creek through gaps,
cracks, and fissurcs in a bulkhead along the Creek at the site of the facility, which is now known
as the Peerless Importers property. Thesc bulkhead discharges are ongoing.

Many, if not all, of the solid or hazardous wastes disposed of, or being disposed of, by
Chevion have been detected in the recent sampling of the Creek’s surface waters and sediments,
see the attached Exhibit A, and have also been detected in recent groundwater sampling in the
(reenpoint area, see the attached Exhibit B, Creek sediment samples also found petroleum - as
much as 10% of the dry weight of the sample.

C. BP

BP, inchiding a predecessor, Amoco, owns and operates the BP Amoco Bulk Storage
Facility located at Norman Avenue and Apollo Street in Greenpoint, Brooklyn, adjacent to the
Creck. Durting the course of its ownership and operation of the facility, BP spilled, released, and
otherwise disposed of petrolenm and other pollutants into the environment in the arca of its
facility and those poliutants entered the subsurface, soils, and sroundwater, as well as the surface
waters and sediments of the Creek and its tributaries. Petroleum and other pollutants from the

' The Peerless Importers property is located at 26 Bridgewater Street and Mecker Avenue
{Block #2666, Lots 1, 52, 125), and the Steel Equities property is located at 100 and 120 Apollo
Street and Bridgewater Street (Block #2666, Lots 101 and 201).
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BP facility have migrated through the subsurface and merged with contaminants from Bxxon's
Spill, eventually discharging into the Creele’s waters and sediments. Exxon, Chevron, and BP
together will hereafier be referred to as the “oil companics.”

Many, if not all, of the solid or hazardous wastes disposed of, or being disposed of, by BP
have been detected in the recent sampling of the Creek’s surface waters and sediments, see the
attached Exhibit A, and have also been detected in recent groundwater sampling in the
Greenpoint arca, see the attached Exhibit B. Creek sediment samples also fr.mnd petroleum - a3
mueh a5 10% of the dry weight of the sample,

D. Phelps Dedge

Phelps Dodge operated a copper smelting plant on its Laurel Hill site, located on the
notth bank of the Creek dewnstream of Maspeth Creek and east of the Kosciuszko Bridge, This
site is a State Superfund Site listed on the State’s Registry of Inactive Hazardous Waste Disposal
Sites as Site No. 241002, The primary contaminants of concern at the PD site are heavy metals,
including cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, and mercury, as well as PAHs and PCBs. Past
discharpes, spills, leaks, and disposal from the facility’s operation caused sediment
contamination in the Creek and those sediments serve as continuing sources of contaminant
releases. Many, if not all, of the solid or hazardous wastes disposed of by PD have been detected
in recent sampling of the Creck’s surface waters and sediments. See Exhibit A, attached hereto.

E. Kevepan

Keyspan Corporation, and its predecessors, are past and present owners and operators of
several manufactured gas plant (MGP) facilities along Newtown Creek. Specifically, Keyspan
has owncd and operated three sites: (1) the Greenpeint Energy Center site, a manufactured gas
plant (MGP) located at 287 Maspeth Avenue, Brooklyn, New York and adjacent to the Creek; (2)
the Equity Works MGP sile, located at Maspeth Avenue, Brooklyn and in ¢close proximity to the
Creek; and (3 the Scholes Street Holder Station site, located at 338 and 350 Scholes Sireet,
Brooklyn, New York and also in close proximity to the Creel.

Keyspan’s.operations at these three facilities resulted in the release into the environment
of a wide variety of contaminants, including arsenic, metals, PCBs, petroleum products, VOCs,
chlorinated solvents, SYOCs, and ferro-ferric cyanide complexes. These solid or hazardous
wastes have entered the soil, subsurface, and groundwater at Keyspan’s facilities and, on
information and beliel, the surface waters and sedimentis of the Cresk. These wastes contime to
exist in the Creek’s sediments and thus serve as continuing sources of contaminant releases.

Many, if not all, of the solid or hazardous wasies disposed of, or being disposed of, by
Keyspan have been detected in the recent sampling of the Creek’s surface waters and sediments.
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See Bxhibit A, attached bereto. Many, if not all, have also been detected in soil sﬁmpling at the
Keyspan Greenpoint Encrgy Center site. See Exhibit C, attached hercto,

HI. The State of New Yark’s Intention to File Suit

In light of all the facts described above, the oil companies, PD, and Keyspan, us past or
present generators, transporters, or owners and operators of facilities where solid or hazardous
wastes were treated, stored, or disposed of, have contributed, or are contributing, to the past or
present handling, storage, treatment, transpoertation, or disposal of solid and of hazardous wastes
in such a way as to have created an imminent and substantial endangerment at their facilities, as
well as in the Creek and its surrounding environs. Pursuant to the RCRA citizen suit provision,
42 U.B.C. § 6972(a)(1XB), the State accordingly intends to sue these companies for “contributing
to the past or present handling, storage, treatment, transportation, or disposal of any solid or
hazardous waste which may prescnt an imminent and substantial endangerment to health or the
environment.” RCRA defines disposal as a “discharge, deposit, injection, dumping, spilling,
leaking, or placing of any scolid waste or hazardous waste into or on any land or water so that
such solid waste or hazardous waste or any constituent thereof may enter the environment or be
emitted into the air or discharged into any waters, including ground waters.” See 42 11.8.C.

§ 6903(3).

The oil companies, PD, and Keyspan are in violation of RCRAs imminent and
substantial endangerment provision until such time as they cease to dispose of pollutants, and
until such pollutants are remediated by them. At the close of the 90-day notice period, the State
intends to file a citizen suit against the oil companies, PD, and Keyspan pursuant o 42 U.8.C.

§ 6972(a) 1 }{B). The State intends to seek all available injunctive relief for the companies’
creation of an imminent and substantial endangerment in violation of RCRA, as well as the
State’s legal fees and costs,

The claims set forih above are not exclusive. This Notice of Inient to Sue is sent without
waiver of or any prejudice to the rights of the State of New York, the Attorncy General of the
State of New York, or any other agency or officer of the State of New York to advance any
additional or further legal and/or factnal claims, including any federal claim for velief and/or state
law and/or common law cause of action based upon information or facts that are now known or
may become known in the future,

This Notice of Intent to Suc sufficiently states grounds for filing suit, During the 30-day
RCRA notice period, the State will be willing to discuss effective remedies for the viclations
noted in this letter. If you wish to pursue such discussions in the absence of litigation, please
initiate thosc discussions within ten (10} days of receiving this notice so that a meeting can be
arranged and settlement negetiations may be completed before the end of the notice period. If
you wish to discuss these matters further, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned. At
the closc of the 80-day notice period, unless significant progress is made in remedying thesc
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violations, the State intends to file a citizen suit against the oil companies, D, and Keyspan
under 42 T2.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(B}.

Sincerely,

AMNDREW M, CUOMO
Attorney General of the State of New York

v«v %w
RD RT EMMET HERNAN
Assistant Attorney General
New York State Office of the Attorney General
Environmental Protection Bureau, 26" Floor
120G Broadway
New York, New York 10271
Tel: {212) 416-8441
Fax: (212) 416-60607
robert. hernanf@oag state.ny.us

Ce: (By Certified Mail)

Stepheit L. Johnson, Administrator _
U.S. Envirommental Protection Agency
Ariel Rios Building

1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, N'W,
Washington, D.C. 20460

Alan I. Steinberg, Regional Administrator
UJ.5. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 2

290 Broadway

New York, NY 10007-1866

Commissigner

New York State Department of Environmental Consewatmn
625 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233-1010
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Alison Crocker, Acling General Counsel

New York State Department of Environmental Conservatio
625 Broadway '
Albany, NY 12233-1500

Marie McGowan, Liaq.
Counsel, Environmental Law
Exxon Mobil Comporation
3225 Gallows Road, 3D2134
Fairfax, Virginia 22037

James Hamnla, Esq.
Gallagher & Kennedy, PLA.,
2575 L. Camelback Road
Phoenix, Arizona 85016

Robert Abrams, Esq.
stroock & Stroock & Lavan

180 Maiden Lanc
New York, New York 10038-4982
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| EXHIBIT A i
POLLUTANTS IN NEWTOWN CREEK
SEDRIMENTS AND SURFACE WATER
MARCH, JULY 2004 [

SECIMENT

METALS
Adurminuim
Antimany
Arsenic

Sodiiim
Calcium
Chromium __
Cobalt S
Coppar

Iron

Lead e
Magnosium
Manganese
e raury
Migkel
Fatazsium
Selenium__
Sodlum _
Vanadiom
Zinc

|t ¢ ] e 3¢ 24, ¢ 3¢5,

I
1
I
|
|
1

|| el e[ e 3| e
=

PCBs (Polychlorinated

Biphenyls)
Aroclor 1242 o X
Argclor 1254 X
Arocior 1260 ’ X

PESTICIDES
4 A-DDD
44-00E
4.4-007
Aldein

Alpha-chlordane T X
Beta-BHC e ' X
Garmina BHCindane) __ x
Gamma ¢hlordane o % i

Dvig drin LR :
Enclasulfan ’ . W
Endrin Aldefyde : X
Gartma-BHC B ’ x
Heptashlorepoxide o TN

PAHs
Acenaphthens

Anthracens

Benzo(bjfluoranthene
Banzgdfa, b, Iperylans

Chrysene
Dibenz{a hianthracena
Flagranthens

Fluorena

indeno{1,2 3ipyrena

MM}KHHHH
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Maphthalene
Fhenathrene

Pyrena

sifcics :smi-mlaulu

(e

.ﬁ.o&nap hthylone T ¢ -
Aaetnphenon& . —

Benzardehyde

hiphany|
Bls[Z-EthyIhexyl}phtharata L

(| ) 2 [ | |

Dlhanzulu:an__
2,4-Dichlorophgnel
Dl-n-butylphthalate
Di-n-petylphibalate
2-Methylnaphthalens L
a-Wsihylphenal
2-Mathylnephthalene

st |3 |

YOCs {Volatile Organic

Compounds) " | " '
i.2-Dichlorobenzend )
1.4-Dichlorobangens
2-Butanone [MEK)
IAcetone
Benzeng .
Ca rbn Disulfide . :
| Chigraferm ) . X
cis-1,2-Dighlorogthens ' X
Cyclohexana

Ethylbenzene

lsopiopylrengens . o - C —
Methyl acatate N . = - oo

Mathy] oyclahexana i c e S
Methyl Tert Butyl Ether
Methylana hlor Ide
Tet_r:a_chlnmethana L
Tolusne _
Trichioresifiens ~ ;
Xyleng

|
I

xxexx
I .

| 1

ot 2| e | | 2

DIOXNS AND FURANS
Dctachlorodlbenzefuran
Qctachlorodibanze-p-dloxin
Heptachlorodibenzofuran

Heptachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
Pentachlgradienzafuran

Pentachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin

Tetrachloradibanzafuran

i
i
|
i
L
i

v | e e e 3 e

| Tetrachlorodibense p- diexin

QTHERS
Amrmania
Bromide
Chiorlde
Mitritefhitrate
Sulfate

Tetal Dissclved Solids
Total Suspended Solids

3E | 3 e | 2




Case 1:07-cv-02902-CBA-RML  Document 1 Filed 07/17/2007

. EXHIBIT B
FPOLLUTANTS FOUND IN GROUNDWATER

benzens
toluens
ethylbenzene
¥ylenes
methy| tert bulyl ether (MTEBE)
naphthalens
1.2 4-trimathybenzens
1,3 5-trimsthylbenzens
n-butylbenzene
isapropylbenzene
n-propylbenzens
p-isopropy telusne
sec-butylbanzens
naphthalens
acenaphthens
fluorane
phenanthrens
anthracene
fluocranthsne
pyreng
benzo{alanthiracens
chrysene
benzo{biflucranthane
banzo{kifluoranthene
henzol{aipyrens
indenol1,2.3-cdipyrens
dibenz{a hianthracene
kenzoig h.iperylens
t-amyl methyl ether
t-butyl alcohel
chlorefarm
1, t-dichlorethane
cis-1,2-dichloroethene
tetrachloroethens
trichlorpethens
vinyl chloride
bis{2-ethylhexyljphthalate
sec-butylbenzens
cyclohexane
1.2 4-trichlorobenzens
benzalblpyrens
2-methylnaphthalens
acetone
tert-butylbenzehe
ehlorchenzens
heptane
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EXHIBIT C
POLLUTANTS FOUND IN SOILS AT KEYSPAN SITE
MARCH 2004

acetone
Z-hutanone
benzena
tolusne
ethylbenzene
Xylenss
tetrachloroethens
slyrena
naphihalene
2-nethylnaphthalene
acenaphthylens
acenaphthene
dienzofuran
fluorene
4,5-dinitro-2-methylphenol
phenanthrens
anthracene
carbazole
flugranthena
pyrene
benzo{ajanthracene
ehrysens
bis{2-ethylhexyliphthalats
benzo(biflucranthene
benzo(k)flucranthene
benzofalpyrens
indeno{t,2,3-cdipyrens
dibenza(a,hperylene
arsenic
barium
cadmium
chromlum
cyanide
lead

mercury
selenium
silver
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STATE OF New YORK

OTFICE OF FHE ATTORNEY GENERAL
ANBREW M, Soma . - WIS OF FPUBLIC ACYOCACY
Attarnay Ganaral Envirgnmeantal Protactlen Burgau

February 8, 2007

Via Certified United States Mail

LExxonMobil Corporation
Corporate Headquarters
5959 Las Colinas Boulevard
Irving, Texas 75039-2298

ExxonMobil Corporation
Corporation Service Company
Registered Agent in New York State
80 State Street

Albany, Mew York 12207

Steve P. Trifiletti

ExxonMobil Refining & Supply Company
Global Remediation

Inwood Termmal

464 Doughty Boulevard

Inwood, New York 11096

RE: Notice of ITntent o Sue Exxonhdobil Corporation and ExxonMobil Refining &
Supply Company for Clean Water Act Violations in Greenpoint, Brooklyn,
New York

Dear Sirs and Madams:

The Statc of New York (State) hereby gives notice of its intent to sue ExxonMobil
Corporation and its affiliate, ExxonMobil Refining & Supply Company (together “Exxon™),
under 33 U.S.C. § 1365 for ongoing violations of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, more
commonly known as the Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251, ef seg. Specifically, the
State will seek civil penalties and injunetive relicf under the CWA for ongoing, unpermitted
discharges of poilutants by Exxon into Newtown Creek, a navigable water of the United States,
in violation of 33 U.5.C. § 1311, which makes unlawful any discharge of a pollutant by any
person without a permit.

120 Broadway, 26th Fl. New Yok, MY, 10271-0332 * Phone (212) 416-B446 # Fax (212} 416-6007
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L Exxon’s Greenpoint Spill

Since at least the early 1900%, if not earlier, Exxon ahd its predecessors, including the
Standard Oil Company, the Standard Oil Company of New York, and Mobil Oil Company, have
owned and operated petroleum refinery and storage facilitics - at times known as the Brooklyn
Terminal — located in the Greenpoint neighborhood of Brooklyn, New York., At one point, these
facilities included a large tank farm property (now a part of the Newtown Creek Wastewater
Treatment Plant) and a refinery and storage facility that encompassed all of the land now
bounded by North Henry Street, Greenpoint Avenue, Norman Avenue, Apollo Street, and
Mewtown Creek. Exxon still owns an ibactive petroleum storage facility within that area.

~ During the many decades of Exxen'’s operation of its Greenpoint petroleum refinery and
storage facililies, Exxon spilled, leaked, or otherwise discarded at least seventeen million gallons
of various petroleum products and other non-petroleum pollutants from those facilities into the
surtounding environment, including into the soils, subsurface soils, pronndwater, and the surface
waters and sedirments of Newtown Creek, This widespread contamination has formed 8 massive
plume of underground petroleurm and other pollutants in the Greenpoint area {the Spill).

Exxon owns and operates two systems to recover only free petroleum product from the
grounrd: (1) the Cff-Site Free Product Recovery Systern {Off-Site Recovery System) located on
Bridgewater Strect, Greenpoint, New York, which includes an outfall mto Newtown Creck
located at the end of Meeker Avenue; and (2) the Brooklyn Terminal Free Product Recovery
System {On-8itc Recovery Systemn) located at 400 Kingsland Avenue, Greenpoint, New York,
which also includes au cutfall into Newtown Creek, As an incident of their operation, these
systems recover some contaminated groundwater, which 1s treated with carbon filters andfor
airstnippers and then discharged into Newitown Creek through the two outfalls, Each of these
outfalls is currently regulated by the State Pollution Discharge Elimination System (SPDES)
program.

11. Exxon’s Ongoeing Violations of Clean Water Act: Unpermitted Discharges of
Pollutanis from Exxon Cutfalls and from Newtown Creek Bulkheads

The CWA prohibits the discharge of any pollutant from a point seurcc into the waters of
the United States, except pursuant to and in compliance with a permit. See 33 US.C. § 1311(a);
33 U.5.C § 1342(a). The CWA defines “pollutant” broadly to mclude “dredged spoil, solid
waste, incinerator residue, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes,
biological materials, radicactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand,
cellar dirt and industrial, municipal, and agriculiural waste discharged into water.” 33 U.S.C.
§ 1362(6); sce also United States v. Hamel, 551 F.2d 107, 111 {6th Cir. 1977) (finding that
gasoline was a pollutant under the Act). The CWA defines a “point source™ as “any discernible,
confined and discrete conveyance, including but not limited to any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel,
conduit, well, discrete fissure, container, rolling stock, concentrated amimal fecding operation, or
vessel or other floating craft, fitom which pellutants are or may be discharged.” 33 U.S.C.

-
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§ 1362(14}; see also Concerned Area Residenis for the Environment v. Southview Farm, 34 F.3d
114, 118-19 (2d Cir. 1994) (holding that Act’s point source definition should be “broadly
interpreted™). The Creek is a navigable water of the United States. §ee 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7);
see aiso Rapanos v, United States, 126 5.Ct. 2208, 2006 U.S, LEXIS 4887 (2006) (defining
“navigablc waters” as used in the CWA).

A, Viplations Relating to Qutfalls

Exxon is currently violating section 301(a) of the CWA by discharging unpenmitted
petroleum products and other pollutants into Newtown Creck through the On-Site and Off-Site
Recovery Systems cutfalls, which are pipes and thus point sources under the Act. The various
chemicals being discharged by thosc cutfalls originated from Exxon’s Spill and are poliutants
under the CWA. The discharge of these pollutants is not currently authorized by the State’s
SPDES program. ' :

Although Exxon was likely aware of the discharge of thesc unpermitted pollutants
because it, of course, lad access to 1ts own raw sampling data, it nevertheless failed to notify the
State of the presence of these unpermitted pollutants as required by the Clean Water Act. The
State discovered Exxon's unpermitted discharges when it required Exxon to disclose the raw data
from its monihly sampling events starting in carly 2006. This raw data revealed that Exxon is
discharging numerous unpermitted pollutants into the Creek through its two SPDES pipes,
including lead, volatilc solvents such as acetone, and other potentially toxic and/or carcinogenic
chemicals that can cause great harm to public health or the enviconment, See the attached
Exhibit A, which is a chart based on the raw samipling data the State has obtained to date that
specifically identifies Exxon’s unpermitted polhitants, the particular pipe that discharged the
unpermitted pollutant, and the dates of Exxon’s unpermitted discharges.

Bascd on the State’s understanding of Exxon’s On-Site and Off-Site Reeovery Systems
and how they have operated to date, and in light of the raw discharge data obtaimed by the State
to date, the unpermitred discharges from Exxon’s SPDES pipes are occurring on a nearly daily
basis and have occurred for at least the last five years, if not since the beginning of Exxon’s
operation of the pipes. Each daily discharge of a single unpermitted pollutant from a point
source constitutes a separate violation under the Clean Water Act, and the State fully intends to
seek the appropriatc penaltics available under the Act for cach violation.

B, Violations Relating to Newtown Creele Bulkheads

Exxon is also currently violating the Clean Water Act by discharging unpermitted
petroleum products and other pollutants into Newtown Creek through bulkheads located at two
propertics that are adjacent to each other and border the Creek’s Greenpoint, Brooklyn shoreline.
These two properiies are commonly known as the Peerless Importers and Steel Equities
properties. The Peerless Imporiers property is located at 26 Bridgewater Street and Meeker




Case 1:07-cv-02902-CBA-RML  Document 1 Filed'07/17/2007 Page 38 of 52

Avenue {Block #2666, Lots 1, 52, 125), and the Stecl Equities property is located at 100 and 120
Apollo Street and Bridgewater Street (Block #2666, Lots 101 and 201).

The plume of contaminants from Exxon’s Spill has migrated, and continucs to migrate, to
the Creek. As it reaches the edge of the Creek — specifically the bulkheads located along the
Creek’s shoreline at the Peerless Tmporters and Steel Equities properties — these pollutants seep
into the Creel’s waters through cracks, fissurcs, and gaps in the buylkheads. The cracks, fissures,
and gaps, as wcll as the bulkheads themselves, ate point sources as defimed by the Clean Water
Act because they convey Exxon’s spilled pollutants from the ground to the Creel’s waters, The
pollutants identified in Exhibit B, which is aitached to this letter, are many of the pollutants that
Exxon is discharging through the bulkhead seeps into Newtown Creek, The State also believes
that one or more of the following petroleum products or constituents are also discharging from
the bulkheads: erude oil, naptha, fuel oils (Nos. 2, 4, or 6), kerosene, gasoline, gas oil, diesel fuel,
and lead, among others. Many of these pollutants are potentially toxic and/or carcinogenic
chemicals — such as benzene, which has been identified by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency as a known carcinegen - that can canse great harm to public health and the
environruent.

Futthermore, the bulkhead sesps are nearly continuous in occurrence. Exxon does not
have a permit to discharge any pollutants-from the bulkheads at issue. Thus, cach daily discharge
of a single unpennitted pollutant from the buliheads constitutes a separate violation under the
Clean Water Act, and the State fully intends to seek the appr(}prlate penalties available under the
Act for each violation.

Exxon has been aware of these unpermitted bullchead discharges for many years, and at
least for the last five years, becausc it operated a boom containment system at the Peerless
Imporiers bulkhead up until early 2005, During its operation of this system, Exxon regularly —
perhaps even weekly — skimmed the water in the Creek for oil and other pollutants that had been
illegally discharged by the bulkhead seeps. See the attached Exhibit C, which lists, among other
things, all the dates for which the State can currcntly document an Exxon skimming event at the
Pcerless Importers bulkhead, Exxon may know of additional unpermitted discharges at that
bulkhead.

Exxon is alsc aware of the unpermitted discharges at the Steel Equities bulkhead. The
State recently approached Exxon and asked it to take responsibility for stopping the discharges at
Steel Eguities. Exxon declined.

'The bulkhead seeps at the Peerless Importers and Steel Equities properties ave ongoing, as
docimented by Exhibit C, which identifies all unpermitted bulkhead discharges known to the
State at this point. Riverkeeper, a nonprofit environmental watchdog organization, has also
documented numcrous unpermitted discharges at the bulkheads, and Exxon is already aware of
those discharges through the Clean Water Act suit brought by Riverkeeper against Exxon in
2004, See Riverkeeper v. Exxon Mobil Corp., Civil Case No, 04-2056 (CBA/RLM) (E.D.N.Y.),

4
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Riverkecper Notice of Intent to Sue Letter for Clean Water Act Violations, dated January 20,
2004; see alse Bxhibit C, attached heteto, which lists, among other things, unpermitted bulkhead
discharges observed by Riverkeeper. Each of the discharges listed in the attached Exbibit C
constituies a separate violalion of the Clean Water Act and the State will seek the appropriate
penalties available under the Act for each such violation.

IIT. Exxon’s Violations Are Harming the State of New York

Exxon’s unpermitted discharpes from its On-Site and Off-Site Recovery Systems outfalls -
and from the bulkheads at the Steel Equities and Peerless Importers properties constitute ongoing
and significant violations of the Clean Water Act that have inflicted, and continue to inflict, great
harm upon the State of New York, its ¢itizens and residents, and the environment. The pollutants

“illegally discharged to datc by Exxon — various kinds of petroleum, petroleum conipounds and
constituents, toxic metals, and volatile and semi-volatile compounds, among others — posc a
significant threat to the health of thosc New York citizens and residents who use the Creek, and
conmected surface waters, for subsistence fishing, erabbing, and recreational activitics, as well as
to thosc who live close to the Creck. Exxon’s illegal discharges, furthermore, have helped to
create an offensive tuisance that interferes with the enjoyment of the environment by nearby
residents.

‘New York’s environment also continues to suffer because of Exxon’s ongoing illegal
discharges, The Creek is a water of the State of New York. Exxon’s pollution of the Creek
confributes to the degradation of its water quality, and in turn, threatens the recently improving
water qualily of New York Harbor, of which the Creek is a tributary. Exxon’s pollution of the
Creek also harms the State-owned tidal wetlands found in the Creck, which are a valuable
resource for the protection of water quality, Exxon’s pollution, furthermore, poses a serious
_ threat to all of the Creek’s wildlife, including any birds, fish, crmstaceans, shellfish, or benibic
organisms that live in, or near, the Creek, or that frequent it for food. '

Finally, the State itself has also been harmed by Exxon’s illegal discharges as it has had
to cxpend monies and resources to attempt to stop, ameliorate, or mitigate the public health risks
and environmental barms associated with Exxon’s pollution of the Creck. The State anticipates
that these cfforts will increase in the future and that it will be forced to expend substantial monies
and resources to address Exoxon’s ongoing pollution of the Creek. -

Exxon will remain in violation of the CWA each day that oil and other pollutants are
discharged through the bulkheads into the Creek and each day it discharges unpermitted
polintants from its On-Sitc and Off-Site Recovery Systems. As noted in 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d) and
40 C.EF.R. § 19.4, violations are subject to a civil penalty not to exceed $32,500 for each such
viclation. At the close of the 60-day notice period, the State intends to file a citizen suit under
section 505(a) of the CWA, 33 U.R.C. § 1365(a), against Hxxon. The State intends to seak
nenaltics, injunctive relief, legal fees and costs for these violations of the CWA,
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The claims sel forth above are not exclusive. This Notice of Intent to Sue is sent without
waiver of ar any prejudice 10 the rights of the State of New York, the Atiorney General of the
State of New York, or any other agency or officer olthe State of New York to advance any
additional or further legal and/or factual claims, mncluding any federal claim for relief and/er state
law and/or common law cause of action based upon mnformation or facts that are now known or
may become known in the future. ) : '

This Netice of Intent to Sue sufficiently states grounds for filing suit and conforms with
all requirements of 33 U.S.C. § 1365(b) and 40 C.F.R. § 135.3(a). During the 60-day CWA
notice period, the State remains willing to discuss effective remedies for the violations noted in
this letter, If you wish to pursue discussions in the absence of liligation, please initiate such
discussions within ten {10) days of recerving this Notice, At the close of the 60-day period,
unless sighilicant progress is made in remedying these vioiations, the State will file a citizen suit
apainst Exxon under CWA section 505(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1365(a). If you wish to discuss these
matters further, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned.

Sincerely,

ANDREW M. COOMO
Attommey General of the State of New York

By: ét fﬂa 1* ﬂ*ﬁwf_v(/ /éw\—

ROBERT EMMET HERNAN

Assistant Attorney General

Mew York State Office of the Attomey General
Enviteumental Protection Bureau, 26" Floor
120 Broadway :

New York, New York 10271

Tel: (212) 416-8461

Fax: {212} 416-6007
-yobert hernan{@oag. state.ny.us

Cc: (By Cenified Mail)

Stephen L. Johnsen, Admunistrator
[J.S. Environmental Protection Agcncy
Arnel Rigps Building

1200 Pennsylvama Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20460
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Alan J. Steinberg, Repional Administeator
- U.S, Environmental Protection Agency

Region 2

290 Broadway

New York, NY 10007-1866

Commissioner

New York State Department of Enwrﬂnmental Conservation
6235 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233-1010)

Alison Crocker, Acting Cieneral Counsel

New York State Departinent of Environmental Canservatmn
625 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233-1500

Marie McGowan, Esqg.
Counsel, Environmental Law .
Exxon Mobi Corporation
3225 Gallows Road, 3D2134
Fairfax, Virginia 22037
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e | EXHIBIT A
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EXHIBIT B
POLLUTANTS DISCHARGING FROM BULKHEADS

benzene
teluene
ethylbenzens
xylenss
methyt tert buty| sther {(MTBE)
naphthalehe
1.2 4-frimethylbenzens
1.3, 5-rimethyibenzens
n-butyibenzens
isopropylibenzensa
n-propylbenzens
p-isopropyltolusns
sec-bulylbenzeng
acenaphthene
flucrene
phenanthrene
anthracene
flugranthene
pyrene
benzo(a)anthracene
chrysene
banzo{biflucranthens
banzefkiflugranthena
kenzo(aipyrens
indena1,2 3-cdipyrens
dibanz{z hlanthracens
benzolg.h iperylens
tamyl methyl ether
t-buty| alcohel
chloraform
1,1-dichloreethans
gis-1, 2-dichlorcethene
tetrachloroethene
trichlorpethene
vinyl chloride
bia(2-ethylhexy|iphthalata
sec-butylbenzene
cyclohexane
1,2 d4-trichlorobenzens
bernzo{bipyrens
2-methyinaphthalene
acetohe
tert-butylbenzenea
chlorobenzens
heptane
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EXHIBIT C

Observations of Unpermitted Bulkhead Discharges Into Newtown Creek

Date Witness
February 6, 2002 Exxon
Julf 2,2002 Exxon
July 10, 2002 Exxon
July 23, 2002 Exxon
August 1, 2002 Exxon
August B, 2002 Exxon
August 13, 2002 Exxon _
October 25, 2002 Riverkeeper

December 11, 2002

Riverkaeper

December 16, 2002 Exxon
January 8, 2003 Exxon
January 15, 2003 Exxon
January 20, 2003 Exxon
February 6, 2003 Exxon
February 13, 2003 Exxon
February 25, 2003 Exxon
March 11, 2003 Exxon
March 18, 2003 Exxon
March 20, 2003 Exxon
April 1, 2003 Ekxu_n
April 8, 2003 Exxon
April 15, 2003 Exxon
Aprit 22, 2003 Exxon
April 29, 2003 Exxon
May 8, 2003 Riverkeeper
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May 8, 2003 Exxon

May 12, 2003 Riverkeeper
May 20, 2003 Exxon

May 29, 2003 Exxon

June 3, 2003 Exxon

Juneg 9, 2003 Riverkeeper
June 10, 2003 Exxon

June 17, 2003 Exxon

June 24, 2003 Exxon

July 2, 2003 Exxon

July 9, 2003 Exxon

July 14, 2003 Exxon

July 22, 2003 Exxon

July 29, 2003 Exxon
August 5, 2003 Exxon
August 11, 2003 Riverkeeper

August 12, 2003

Riverkeeper and Exxon

August 19, 2003 Exxon
August 26, 2003 Exxon
August 27, 2003 Riverkeaper
September 4, 2003 Exxcon
September 9, 2003 Exxon
September 10, 2003 Riverkeeper
September 18, 2003 Exxon

September 22, 2003

Riverkeeper

September 23, 2003 Exxon
September 29, 2003 Exxon
October 9, 2003 Exxon
Ootober 14, 2003

Exxon
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October 17, 2003

Riverkeeper

Qctober 21, 2003

Exxon

QOctober 30, 2003

Riverkeeper and. Exxon

November 4, 2003 Exxon
November 11, 2003 Exxon
November 13, 2003 Rivaerkeeper
November 18, 2003 Exxon
November 25, 2003 Rlverkeeper
November 26, 2003 Exxon
December 10, 2003 Exxon
December 15, 2003 Exxon
January 9, 2004 Exxon
February 13, 2004 Exxon
March 2, 2004 Exxon
March 3, 2004 Exxon
March 11, 2004 Exxon
March 15, 2004 Exxon
March 23, 2004 Exxon
March 25, 2004 Riverkeeper
April 7, 2004 Exxon

April 12, 2004 Exxon

April 20, 2004 Exxon and Riverkeeper
April 21, 2004 Riverkeeper
April 28, 2004 Exxon

April 29, 2004 Exxon

May 10, 2004 Riverkeeper
May 11, 2004 Exxon

May 13, 2004 Exxon

May 19, 2004 Exxon
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May 24, 2004- Exxon

May 25, 2004 Riverkeaper

June 3, 2004 Exxon

June 5, 2004 Riverkeeper

June 15, 2004 Exxon

July 1, 2004 Riverkeeper

July 2, 2004 Riverkeeper

July 6, 2004 Rivarkeeper

July 14, 2004 Exxon and Riverkeeper
July 15, 2004 Exxon and Riverkeeper
July 20, 2004 Exxon

July 28, 2004 Riverkeeper

July 29, 2004 Riverkeeper

August 4, 2004 Exxon

August 11, 2004 Exxon

August 12, 2004 Riverkeeper

August 13, 2004

Riverkeeper

August 14, 2004

Riverkesper

August 15, 2004

Riverkeeper

August 18, 2004

Riverkeeper

August 17, 2004

Riverkeeper

August 18, 2004

Exxon and Riverkeeper

August 19, 2ﬂﬂ4

Rivarkeeper

August 26, 2004 Exxon
September 3, 2004 Exxon -
September 23, 2004 R'iverkeepe_r
Neavember 2, 2ﬁ04 Exxon
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November 11, 2004 Exxen
MNovember 12, 2004 Riverkgeper
November 15, 2004 Riverkeeper
November 22, 2004 Exxon
December 8, 2004 Riverkeeper
December 14, 2004 Riverkeaper
December 16, 2004 Riverkeeper
February 2, 2005 Exxon
February 9, 2005 Exxon-
March 10, 2005 Exxon
March 15, 2008 Exxon
March 22, 2005 Exxon
April 5, 2005 Riverkeeper
April 7, 20056 Riverkeeper
April 12, 2005 ' Riverkkaeper
April 13, 2005 : Riverkeeper
April 15, 2005 Riverkeeper
May 31, 2005 Riverkeeper
June 21, 2005 Riverkeeper
July 28, 2005 Riverkeeper
| July 29, 2005 | Riverkeeper
August 26, 2005 Riverkeeper
September 1, 2005 Riverkeeper
September 20, 2005 Riverkeeper
October 14, 2005 Cheavron
Qctober 28, 2005 _ Riverkeeper
November 1, 2005 Riverkeeper
November 3, 2005 Riverkeeper
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November 5, 2005 Riverkeaper
Movember 7, 2005 Riverkeaper
November 9, 2005 Riverkeeper
December 1, 2005 Rlverkeeper
December 2, 2005 Riverkeeper
December 8, 2005 Chevron
December 15, 2005 Riverkeeper
December 16, 2005 Rlverkeeper
December 20, 2005 Chevron
December 23, 2005 Chevron
December 27, 2005 Chevron
December 30, 2005 Chevron
January &, 2008 Chevron
JEIHLIEFI}" 10, 2006 Chevron
danuary 24, 2006 Chevron
January 27, 2006 Chevron
Febfuary 3, 2008 Cheyron
February 7, 2006 Chevron
February 8, 2006 Rlverkeeper
February'M, 2006 Chevron
February 23, 2006 Chevron
March 6, 2006 Chevron
March 20, 2006 Chevron
March 23, 2006 NYSDEC
March 27, 2006 Chevron
April 18, 2006 Chevron
April 20, 2006 Chevran
May 1, 2006 Chevron
May 11, 2006 Riverkeeper
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May 17, 2006 NYSDEC .
May 22, 2008 NYSDEC
May 23, 2006 NYSDEC
May 30, 2006 Riverkeeper and NYSDEC
May 31, 2006 Riverkeeper and NYSDEC
dune 1, 2006 NYSDEC
June 2, 2008 NYSDEC
June 5, 2006 NYSDEC
June 6, 2006 NYSDEC
June 7, 2006 NYSDEC
June 12, 2006 NYSDEC
June 20, 2006 NYSDEC
June 21, 2006 NYSDEC
June 28, 2008 NYSDEC
July 5, 2006 NYSDEC
July 6, 2006 NYSDEC
July 7, 2006 Riverkeeper and NYSDEC
July 10, 2006 NYSDEC
Juiy 11, 2006 NYSDEC
July 12, 2006 NYSDEC
July 14, 2006 NYSDEC
July 17, 2006 NYSDEC
July 18, 2008 NYSDEC
July 24, 2006 NYSDEC
July 26, 2008 Riverkeeper
July 27, 2006 NYSDEC and Riverkeeper
August 1, 2006 NYSDEC |
| August 2, 2006 NYSDEC




August 15, 20086 NYSDEC
August 17, 2006 Riverkeeper
August 28, 2008 NYSDEC
August 29, 2006 ‘NYSDEC
August 30, 2006 NYSDEC
September 5, 2006 NYSDEC
September 6, 2006 NYSDEC
September 7, 2006 NYSDEC
September 8, 2008 Riverkeeper
September 11, 2006 NYSDEC
September 12, 2006 NYSDEC
September 13, 2006 NYSDEC
September 14, 2006 NYSDEC

| September 18, 2008 Riverkeeper
October 3, 2006 NYSDEC
October 4, 2006 NYSDEC
Cctober 13, 2006 Riverkeeper
October 16, 2006 Riverkesper
Qctober 18, 20086 Riverkeeper
Qctober 24, 2006 NYSDEC
October 25, 2008 NYSDEC
October 31, 2006 NYSDEC
November 8, 2006 NYSDEC
November 10, 2006 Riverkeeper
November 14, 2006 NYSDEC

November 15, 2006 .

Riverkeeper and NYSDEC

November 16, 2006

NYSDEC

Movember 17, 2006

NYSDEC
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November 18, 2006 NYSDEC
November 21, 2006 NYSDEC -
November 27, 2008 NYSDEC
Neovember 28, 2006 NYSDEC
November 29, 2008 NYSDEC

| December 17, 2006 Riverkesper
December 18, 2008 Riverkeeper
January 2, 2007 NYSDEC
January 25, 2007 : Riverkeeper




